
 
 

 
April 19, 2024 

 
Hilton Convention Center 

104 Market Street 
Shreveport, Louisiana 71101 

9:00 a.m. 
 





























































































































































































































Page 1 of 8 
Southern University at Baton Rouge 
Athletics Director Contract 2024 
 

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF ATHELICS DIRECTOR  
ROMAN P. BANKS 

 
This agreement is made and entered into on the ___ day of April 2024 between Southern University 
System Board of Supervisors ("Board") and Roman P. Banks (“Athletics Director”). This agreement 
constitutes the employment contract and appointment of the Athletics Director at Southern 
University in Baton Rouge, Louisiana (“University”) and replaces any previous agreements and 
amendments. This agreement shall be effective on April 1, 2024 and shall remain in effect through 
March 31, 2027, unless extended or terminated subject to the provisions contained herein. 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT OF ATHELICS DIRECTOR 
 

I. Employment 
 

a. Board does hereby employ Athletics Director as athletic director, and Athletics Director 
does hereby accept employment and agrees to perform all of the services pertaining to 
athletic director that are required of Athletics Director as well as other services as may 
be contemplated hereunder, all as prescribed by the President-Chancellor, and Board 
through its Chairperson. All appointments are subject to applicable polices and 
regulations of the Board, and all employees are required to adhere to Board and/or 
administrative policies as they relate to them. 

 
b. Athletics Director shall be responsible, and shall report, directly to the President 

Chancellor. 
 

c. The duties of the Athletics Director shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
 

i. Maintain a motivated and successful Athletics Department; 
ii. Upgrade and maintain a visible and successful athletic marketing program; 
iii. Maintain involvement with the community at large and Alumni as necessary to 

sustain goodwill and positive public relations with the community at large, Alumni 
and athletic patrons of the University; 

iv. Maintain good interpersonal relations with the staff and team members of the 
Athletics Department, inclusive of evaluation procedures for the staff, in accordance 
with the policies and procedures set forth by the University. 

v. Adhere to the NCAA, SWAC rules and regulations and any and all applicable 
regulations, policies and procedures of the University and the Southern University 
System, as may, from time to time be amended; 

vi. Initiate and maintain a comprehensive athletic fundraising program, which shall 
include but not be limited to solicitations from non-state or private revenue sources; 

vii. Support and monitor the on-going academic enhancement programs designed to 
ensure increased graduation and retention rates and compliance with NCAA APR 
benchmarks and requirements; and 

viii. Maintain all duties normally associated with the Athletics Director's position 
including directives of the Athletics Director as established by the President-
Chancellor or his designee. 



Page 2 of 8 
Southern University at Baton Rouge 
Athletics Director Contract 2024 
 

d. Athletics Director agrees to represent Southern University System positively in public 
and private forums and shall perform his duties and personally handle himself in a 
manner consistent with good sportsmanship and in accordance with high moral, ethical 
and academic standards of the Southern University System and its athletic program. 

 
II. Term 

 
a. The term of this agreement is for three (3) years commencing on April 1, 2024, and 

terminating on March 31, 2027. The Board has the option of extending this agreement for 
one (1) additional year by providing the Athletics Director notice by January 31, 2027. 

 
III. Compensation and Employee Benefits 

 
a. Athletics Director shall receive the following compensation for services and satisfactory 

performance of this agreement. University shall pay Athletic Director a base annual 
salary for the term of this agreement, on a monthly basis the following amounts: 

 
i. April 1, 2024, through March 31,2025: $275,000.00 
ii. April 1, 2025, through March 31, 2026: $275,000.00 
iii.   April 1, 2026, through March 31, 2027: $275,000.00 
 
If the University exercises its option to extend the contract one (1) additional year the 
compensation shall be: 
 
vi.   April 1, 2027, through March 31, 2028: $275,000.00 

 
b. University will provide Athletics Director the opportunity to participate in the benefit 

plans for health insurance, dental insurance, retirement, disability, and life insurance, 
subject to eligibility requirements, normally provided by University to its regular non-
academic unclassified full-time employees. 

 
IV. Outside Income-Subject to Compliance with Board Rules 

 
a. Athletics Director shall be authorized to earn other revenue while employed by University 

but such activities are independent of his University employment and University shall 
have no responsibility for any claims arising therefrom. All outside income must comply 
with the Louisiana Code of Governmental Ethics and will be subject to approval in 
accordance with the Board's policies. 

 
b. Athletics Director shall report annually in writing to the President-Chancellor all income 

from athletically related sources from sources outside of the University including but not 
limited to income from sports camps, housing benefits, television and radio programs, 
endorsement or consultation contracts with athletic shoe, apparel or equipment 
manufacturers or sellers, and University shall have reasonable access to records of 
Athletics Director to verify this report. 

 
 



Page 3 of 8 
Southern University at Baton Rouge 
Athletics Director Contract 2024 
 

V. Performance Goals 
 
(1) Basketball. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the amount of: 

(i) Seven Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($7,500.00) if the Men's Basketball team 
wins the regular season SWAC championship; 
(ii) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if Men's Basketball team wins the SWAC regular 
season championship; 
(iii) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) for each round of progression in the NCAA 
Men's Basketball Tournament; 
(iv) Seven Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($7,500.00) if Women's Basketball Team 
wins the SWAC tournament Championship game; 
(v) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if Women's Basketball team wins the SWAC 
regular season championship;  
(vi) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) for each round of progression in the NCAA 
Women's Basketball Tournament. 

 
     (2)     Football. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the amount of: 

(i) Seven Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($7,500.00) if the Men's Football Team wins 
the SWAC Championship game; 
(ii) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the Football Team competes in the SWAC 
Championship game; 
(iii) Seven Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($7,500.00) if the Men's Football Team wins 
the SWAC Celebration Bowl game; 
(iv) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the Football Team competes in the SWAC 
Celebration Bowl game; 
(v) one (1) month's Base Salary annually for attaining the highest attendance for the 
regular season in the SCS, not to exceed Ten Thousand dollars ($10,000.00). 
 

(3) Baseball/Softball. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the amount 
of:  
(i) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the Men's Baseball team wins the SWAC 
Championship game; 
(ii) Four Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($4,500.00) for each round the Men's 
Baseball team progresses in the SWAC tournament; 
(iii) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the Women's Softball team wins the SWAC 
Championship game; 
(iv) Four Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($4,500.00) for each round the Women's 
Softball team progresses in the SWAC tournament. 

 
(4) Academic Performance. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the 

amount of a one (1) month's Base Salary annually if the APR for ninety percent (90%) 
of the benchmark meet the APR set by the NCAA not to exceed Ten Thousand dollars 
($10,000.00). 

 
(5) Other Sports Teams. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the 

amount of One Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($1,500) each for all other SWAC 



Page 4 of 8 
Southern University at Baton Rouge 
Athletics Director Contract 2024 
 

championships won, including, but not limited to, Bowling, Track, Golf, Volleyball 
and or Soccer. 

 
(6) Sponsorships Incentive. Athletic Director will receive five percent (5%) for all 

sponsorships generated from new and/or the renewal of existing contracts for the 
System to be paid from the System's Foundation. 

 
(7) Game Guarantee Incentive. Athletic Director will receive five percent (5%) of all 

game guarantees for athletic teams. 
 

(8) Awards. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the amount of: 
(i) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the System wins the SWAC C.D. Henry Awards 
(Men's Sports); 
(ii) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the System wins the SWAC Sadie 
Magee/Barbara Jacket Award (Women's sports); 
(iii) Notwithstanding the above Sections V.(8)(i) and (ii), if the System wins the James 
Frank Award (Commissioners Cup), a single incentive payment of Ten Thousand 
dollars ($10,000.00) and no additional compensation for the Henry or Magee/Jacket 
Awards. 

 
(9) Other Performance Incentive. If all certified NCAA Division 1 sports at University are 

eligible for post-season play at the end of sports season, the Athletic Director will 
receive an increase of ten thousand dollars (10,000.00) to the Athletic Director's base 
annual salary for that year. 

 
VI. Compliance with NCAA, Conference and University Rules 

 
a. Athletics Director shall abide by the rules and regulations of the NCAA, SWAC and 

University. If Athletics Director is personally found to be in violation of NCAA regulations, 
Athletics Director shall be subject to disciplinary or corrective action set forth in the 
NCAA enforcement procedures and Section VIL Athletics Director may be suspended for 
a -period of time, without pay if Athletics Director is found to be personally guilty of 
deliberate and serious violations of NCAA, SWAC or University regulations. 
 

b. Athletics Director shall abide by state and federal laws, the State of Louisiana Code of 
Government Ethics, University and the policies and regulations of Southern University 
System. 

 
VII. Termination  

 
a. Termination for Cause. The Board shall have the right to terminate this agreement for 

cause prior to its expiration, and such right shall exist notwithstanding any rights 
available under Section VII hereof, and in addition to the examples listed in University 
Personnel Handbook, the term for cause shall include but not be limited to any one or 
more of the following; 
i. Negligent or inattention by Athletics Director of the standards, duties or 

responsibilities expected by Southern University System employees, after written 



Page 5 of 8 
Southern University at Baton Rouge 
Athletics Director Contract 2024 
 

notice thereof has been given to Athletic Director by President Chancellor and 
Athletics Director has continued such neglect or inattention during a subsequent 
period for not less than thirty (30) days; 
 

ii. Material, intentional, or reckless breach or violation by Athletics Director of the 
agreement, including without limitation governing athletic rules and Southern 
University System rules; or 

 
iii. Arrest/conviction of Athletics Director of any criminal violation (does not include 

minor traffic offenses or non-criminal offenses; or 
 

iv. Fraud or dishonesty of Athletics Director in the performance of his duties or 
responsibilities hereunder; or 

 
v. Actively engaging in any conduct or committing any act that brings University and 

Athletics Director into public disrepute, contempt, embarrassment, scandal or 
ridicule and that negatively impacts the reputation or the high moral or ethical 
standards of the Southern University System; 

 
vi. Conduct of Athletics Director constituting a major violation, or a pattern of conduct 

which may constitute or lead to a major violation, of any NCAA or other governing 
athletic rule or Southern University System interpretation thereof, which may, in the 
reasonable and good faith judgment of the Southern University System negatively 
and significantly impact and reflect adversely upon the Southern University System 
or its athletic programs, including any violation which results or could result in 
University being placed on probation by the NCAA or the SWAC; 

 
vii. Conduct by members of Athletics Department or others under his supervision or 

subject to his control or authority, constituting a major violation, or a pattern of 
conduct which may constitute or lead to major violation, of any NCAA or other 
governing athletic rule or Southern University System interpretation thereof of which 
Athletics Director had knowledge and failed to act reasonably to prevent, limit or 
mitigate, which may, in the reasonable and good faith judgment of the Southern 
University System negatively and significantly impact and reflect adversely upon 
University or its athletics program, including any violation which results or could 
result in University being placed on probation by the NCAA or SWAC; and 

 
viii. Conduct that the Chancellor and/or the Board of Supervisors agree that is not in the 

best interest of University and such conduct would be detrimental to the University 
and Southern University System. In the event this Agreement is terminated for cause 
in accordance with the provisions of Section VIII hereof, then effective as of the 
termination date, Athletics Director shall not be entitled to receive any further 
payments of base salary, and any other compensation or benefit otherwise payable 
under Section III hereof, except Athletics Director will be entitled to continue such 
life or health insurance benefits at Athletics Director's expense as required by law, 
and subject to any deductions permitted by Section III(b) Athletics Director will be 
paid any earned outstanding payments owed by University as of the effective 



Page 6 of 8 
Southern University at Baton Rouge 
Athletics Director Contract 2024 
 

termination date pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. Athletics Director will be 
given notice of the cause and an opportunity for a hearing before the Board of 
Supervisors' Athletics Committee. 

 
b. Termination without Cause. In the event this agreement is terminated without cause, 

Athletics Director and University will be required to provide thirty (30) days notice to the 
other party. The performance of work under this Agreement may be terminated by the 
University with this clause in whole or for time to time in part, whenever the University 
shall determine that such termination is in the best interest of the University. It is the 
understanding that this Agreement may be terminated for convenience of the University 
for the performance by the Athletics Director deemed by the University to unsatisfactory, 
such determination to be within the sole and absolute discretion of the University. In the 
event the agreement is terminated without cause, Athletics Director will be paid any 
earned outstanding, payments owed by the University as of the effective termination date 
pursuant to the terms of the agreement. The parties agree that if this Agreement is 
terminated without cause, then Athletics Director may be given a hearing at the sole 
discretion of the Board of Supervisors' Athletics Committee. If University terminates the 
agreement without cause, as permitted by Section VII hereof, University may pay, and 
Athletics Director agrees to accept as liquidated damages, an amount equal to the sum 
of the annual base salary for the remaining term of the agreement or the University at its 
option my reassign the Athletics Director to another suitable position at the University for 
the remainder of the agreement at a salary equal to his pay. If Athletics Director is not 
reassigned to another position within the University, any future employment and the 
compensations and benefits received therefrom shall be used as an offset to any sums 
that may be due owing by the University to the Athletics Director. If Athletics Director 
terminates this agreement, the Athletics Director will not be entitled to liquidated 
damages. 

 
VIII. Miscellaneous 

 
a. This agreement may be amended at any time only by a written instrument duly signed by 

University through its designated representative and Athletics Director. All amendments 
must be in writing. 
 

b. The agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Louisiana. 

 
c. Athletics Director's rights and interests under this Agreement may not be assigned 

pledged or encumbered by Athletics Director. 
 
d. The agreement constitutes the full and complete understanding and agreement of the 

parties with respect to the employment of Athletics Director by University and 
supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, oral and written, regarding 
Athletics Director's employment by University. 

 



Page 7 of 8 
Southern University at Baton Rouge 
Athletics Director Contract 2024 
 

e. Athletics Director acknowledges that the Athletics Director has read and understands 
the foregoing provisions are reasonable and enforceable, and Athletics Director agrees 
to abide by this agreement and the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 
f. All notices, requests, demands and other communication hereunder may be given by 

personal delivery, delivery by expedited delivery or mail service such as Federal Express 
and United States mail with first class postage prepaid or facsimile/telecopier. Notices 
shall be sent to the names below: 

 
  

If to Athletics Director     If to SU-Baton Rouge 
Southern University Athletics    Dennis J. Shields 
C/o Roman P. Banks     President-Chancellor 
P.O. Box 9942      J.S. Clark Administration Bldg. 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813    4th Floor 

         Southern University A&M College 
        Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
        With copy to:  
        Office of General Counsel 
        Attn: Corinne Blache  
        Genera Counsel  
        J.S. Clark Administration Bldg. 
        4th Floor  
        Southern University A&M College 
        Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 

g. The invalidity or enforceability of any provision of this agreement has no effect on the 
validity or enforceability of any other provisions. 

 
 
 
 

[Remainder of the page left blank] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 8 
Southern University at Baton Rouge 
Athletics Director Contract 2024 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement, or caused this 
agreement to be executed on the date shown below.  
 
 
___________________________  _____________ 
Roman P. Banks   Date 
Athletic Director  
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Dennis J. Shields    Date 
President – Chancellor  
Southern University System  
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Myron Lawson, Chairman  Date 
Board of Supervisors  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



















 

Southern University System 
General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 
As of March 31, 2024  

 
Executive Summary 

 
Attached is a summary of the Southern University System fiscal year 2023-2024 general 

operating budget financial activities for the month ending March 31, 2024. The Southern 

University System is reporting an $812,638 increase in revenues. The increase primarily 
resulted from a gain in self-generated revenues.  

Southern University Board and System Administration  

The System Office is funded from state appropriations and there is no projected shortfall in 
revenues.  

Southern University Baton Rouge Campus   

The Baton Rouge Campus projected Fall 2023 and Spring 2024 tuition exceeded the amount 

budgeted by $4,263,247. The Baton Rouge Campus is using these funds to offset the increase 
cost in other charges and scholarships.  

Southern University Law Center  

The Law Center has a $1,353,080 projected shortfall in Fall 2023 and Spring 2024 tuition as 

compared to the approved budget. The Law Center has reduced personal services, travel, 

supplies, and other charges expenditures to balance the operating budget for the fiscal year.  

Southern University News Orleans Campus  

The New Orleans Campus has a $1,373,579 projected shortfall in self-generated revenue as 

compared to the approved budget. The New Orleans Campus has reduced personal services, 
supplies, and other charges to balance the operating budget for the fiscal year.  

Southern University Shreveport Campus  

The Shreveport Campus has a $723,950 projected shortfall in Fall 2023 and Spring 2024 

tuition as compared to the approved budget. The Shreveport Campus has reduced personal 

services to balance their operating budget for the fiscal year.  

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center   

The Agricultural Research and Extension Center is funded from state appropriations and 

federal funds and there is no projected shortfall in revenues.  

Summary  

Based on the information above the campuses have made the appropriate adjustments to 

maintain a balance budget as of March 31, 2024. Revenues and expenditures will be 

monitored during the remainder of the 2023-2024 fiscal year to allow for a balanced 

operating budget.  



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 66,600,531$        45,650,365$        20,950,166$        66,600,531$        -$                               68.5%

Statutory Dedicated 4,851,115             1,785,269             3,065,846             4,851,115             -                                  36.8%

Federal 3,654,209             910,945                 2,743,264             3,654,209             -                                  24.9%

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 35,457,617           34,781,126           -                               34,781,126           (676,491)                 98.1%

    Tuition - Spring 2024 33,473,960           31,240,902           -                               31,240,902           (2,233,058)              93.3%

    Tuition - Summer 4,321,912             2,360,811             3,085,097             5,445,908             1,123,996                54.6%

    Out-of-State Fees 16,682,867           18,880,026           849,218                 19,729,244           3,046,377                113.2%

    Other 21,332,244           14,094,102           6,789,956             20,884,058           (448,186)                 66.1%

Interagency Transfer 4,476,791             2,981,994             1,494,797             4,476,791             -                                  66.6%

Total Revenues 190,851,246$   152,685,540$   38,978,344$      191,663,884$   812,638$               80.0%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 90,739,457$        70,966,330$        17,184,370$        88,150,700$        (2,588,757)$            78.2%

  Other Compensation 394,759                 222,632                 172,127                 394,759                 -                                  56.4%

  Related Benefits 38,496,101           28,897,859           7,504,789             36,402,648           (2,093,453)              75.1%

Total Personal Services 129,630,317$   100,086,821$   24,861,286$      124,948,107$   (4,682,210)$         77.2%

  Travel 1,490,311             840,943                 565,573                 1,406,517             (83,794)                    56.4%

  Operating Services 17,932,095           13,531,371           6,431,005             19,962,376           2,030,281                75.5%

  Supplies 2,136,272             1,048,243             794,386                 1,842,629             (293,643)                 49.1%

Total Operating Expenses 21,558,678$      15,420,557$      7,790,964$         23,211,522$      1,652,844$           71.5%

  Professional Services 2,727,372             1,938,465             266,940                 2,205,405             (521,967)                 71.1%

  Other Charges 12,367,665           1,424,948             8,578,517             10,003,466           (2,364,199)              11.5%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 7,865,134             8,346,807             1,559,255             9,906,062             2,040,928                106.1%

Total Other Charges 22,960,171$      11,710,221$      10,404,713$      22,114,933$      (845,238)$             51.0%

  General Acquisitions 425,342                 209,827                 215,515                 425,342                 -                                  49.3%

  Library Acquisitions 562,649                 492,669                 127,337                 620,006                 57,357                      87.6%

  Major Repairs 2,495,314             2,803                      2,430,511             2,433,314             (62,000)                    0.1%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 3,483,305$         705,299$             2,773,363$         3,478,662$         (4,643)$                   20.2%

  Scholarships 13,218,775           17,820,660           90,000                   17,910,660           4,691,885                134.8%

Total Expenditures 190,851,246$   145,743,557$   45,920,327$      191,663,884$   812,638$               76.4%

Southern University System

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024 

Page 1



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 5,465,886$           3,620,300$           1,845,586$           5,465,886$           -$                             66.2%

Statutory Dedicated

Federal -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 -                               -                               

    Tuition - Spring 2024 -                               -                               

    Tuition - Summer -                               -                               

    Out-of-State Fees -                               -                               

    Other -                               -                               

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               

Total Revenues 5,465,886$         3,620,300$         1,845,586$         5,465,886$         -$                            66.2%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 1,930,302$           1,387,778$           542,524$              1,930,302$           -$                             71.9%

  Other Compensation 64,500                   38,997                   25,503                   64,500                   -                               60.5%

  Related Benefits 825,606                 426,740                 398,866                 825,606                 -                               51.7%

Total Personal Services 2,820,408$         1,853,515$         966,893$             2,820,408$         -$                            65.7%

  Travel 365,000                 118,466                 246,534                 365,000                 -                               32.5%

  Operating Services 244,000                 95,766                   148,234                 244,000                 -                               39.2%

  Supplies 131,000                 62,459                   68,541                   131,000                 -                               47.7%

Total Operating Expenses 740,000$             276,691$             463,309$             740,000$             -$                            37.4%

  Professional Services 151,000                 90,000                   61,000                   151,000                 -                               59.6%

  Other Charges 1,587,077             -                               1,587,077             1,587,077             -                               0.0%

  Debt Services -                               -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 97,401                   -                               97,401                   97,401                   -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 1,835,478$         90,000$               1,745,478$         1,835,478$         -$                            4.9%

  General Acquisitions 70,000                   4,798                      65,202                   70,000                   -                               6.9%

  Library Acquisitions -                               -                               

  Major Repairs -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 70,000$               4,798$                  65,202$               70,000$               -$                            6.9%

  Scholarships -                               -                               

Total Expenditures 5,465,886$         2,225,004$         3,240,882$         5,465,886$         -$                            40.7%

Southern University Board and System Administration

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024 

Page 2



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 26,039,530$        17,902,176$        8,137,354$           26,039,530$        -$                             68.7%

Statutory Dedicated 1,773,886             905,821                 868,065                 1,773,886             -                               51.1%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 21,974,488           22,932,448           -                               22,932,448           957,960                 104.4%

    Tuition - Spring 2024 21,244,676           20,508,995           -                               20,508,995           (735,681)               96.5%

    Tuition - Summer 2,201,756             1,593,339             1,593,339             3,186,678             984,922                 72.4%

    Out-of-State Fees 11,222,140           13,598,186           680,000                 14,278,186           3,056,046             121.2%

    Other 11,338,306           7,133,478             4,204,828             11,338,306           -                               62.9%

Interagency Transfer 4,476,791             2,981,994             1,494,797             4,476,791             -                               66.6%

Total Revenues 100,271,573$   87,556,438$      16,978,383$      104,534,820$   4,263,247$         87.3%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 45,802,691$        37,403,673$        7,902,615$           45,306,288$        (496,403)$             81.7%

  Other Compensation 201,377                 146,135                 55,242                   201,377                 -                               72.6%

  Related Benefits 19,883,952           17,163,099           2,556,786             19,719,885           (164,067)               86.3%

Total Personal Services 65,888,020$      54,712,907$      10,514,643$      65,227,550$      (660,470)$           83.0%

  Travel 325,870                 209,844                 86,026                   295,870                 (30,000)                 64.4%

  Operating Services 10,688,986           6,297,859             4,462,127             10,759,986           71,000                   58.9%

  Supplies 937,411                 494,367                 234,170                 728,537                 (208,874)               52.7%

Total Operating Expenses 11,952,267$      7,002,070$         4,782,323$         11,784,393$      (167,874)$           58.6%

  Professional Services 1,101,480             1,035,950             65,530                   1,101,480             -                               94.1%

  Other Charges 3,935,631             196,901                 3,589,154             3,786,055             (149,576)               5.0%

  Debt Services -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 4,913,719             6,174,940             6,174,940             1,261,221             125.7%

Total Other Charges 9,950,830$         7,407,791$         3,654,684$         11,062,475$      1,111,645$         74.4%

  General Acquisitions 62,032                   12,027                   50,005                   62,032                   -                               19.4%

  Library Acquisitions 137,649                 47,519                   90,069                   137,587                 (62)                          

  Major Repairs 62,000                   -                               -                               -                               (62,000)                 0.0%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 261,681$             59,546$               140,073$             199,619$             (62,062)$             22.8%

  Scholarships 12,218,775           16,185,783           75,000                   16,260,783           4,042,008$           132.5%

Total Expenditures 100,271,573$   85,368,097$      19,166,723$      104,534,820$   4,263,247$         85.1%
   

Southern University Baton Rouge Campus

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024 

Page 3



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 6,705,340$           4,609,922$           2,095,418$           6,705,340$           -$                             68.8%

Statutory Dedicated 191,980                 96,314                   95,666                   191,980                 -                               50.2%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 5,376,929             4,825,707             -                               4,825,707             (551,222)               89.7%

    Tuition - Spring 2024 5,035,879             4,465,335             -                               4,465,335             (570,544)               88.7%

    Tuition - Summer 767,123                 188,084                 718,113                 906,197                 139,074                 24.5%

    Out-of-State Fees 4,913,227             4,321,807             169,218                 4,491,025             (422,202)               88.0%

    Other 4,324,709             4,092,313             284,210                 4,376,523             51,814                   94.6%

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Revenues 27,315,187$      22,599,482$      3,362,625$         25,962,107$      (1,353,080)$       82.7%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 15,343,775$        12,828,940$        2,508,344$           15,337,284$        (6,491)$                  83.6%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Related Benefits 5,925,444             4,057,681             1,350,646             5,408,327             (517,117)               68.5%

Total Personal Services 21,269,219$      16,886,621$      3,858,990$         20,745,611$      (523,608)$           79.4%

  Travel 505,000                 323,759                 100,000                 423,759                 (81,241)                 64.1%

  Operating Services 1,815,326             1,373,241             450,000                 1,823,241             7,915                      75.6%

  Supplies 280,000                 154,977                 50,000                   204,977                 (75,023)                 55.3%

Total Operating Expenses 2,600,326$         1,851,977$         600,000$             2,451,977$         (148,349)$           71.2%

  Professional Services 1,250,000             548,877                 20,000                   568,877                 (681,123)               43.9%

  Other Charges 981,125                 277,988                 302,648                 580,636                 (400,489)               28.3%

  Debt Services -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 264,517                 340,271                 324,735                 665,006                 400,489                 128.6%

Total Other Charges 2,495,642$         1,167,136$         647,383$             1,814,519$         (681,123)$           46.8%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Library Acquisitions 300,000                 262,732                 37,268                   300,000                 -                               87.6%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 300,000$             262,732$             37,268$               300,000$             -$                            87.6%

  Scholarships 650,000                 650,000                 -                               650,000                 -                               100.0%

Total Expenditures 27,315,187$      20,818,466$      5,143,641$         25,962,107$      (1,353,080)$       76.2%

Southern University Law Center

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024 

Page 4



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 9,734,448$           6,692,437$           3,042,011$           9,734,448$           -$                             68.8%

Statutory Dedicated 552,652                 261,424                 291,228                 552,652                 -                               47.3%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 4,144,256             3,464,091             -                               3,464,091             (680,165)               83.6%

    Tuition - Spring 2024 3,760,661             3,258,589             -                               3,258,589             (502,072)               86.6%

    Tuition - Summer 815,662                 258,845                 556,817                 815,662                 -                               31.7%

    Out-of-State Fees 366,000                 674,658                 -                               674,658                 308,658                 184.3%

    Other 4,498,838             2,315,007             1,683,831             3,998,838             (500,000)               51.5%

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               -                               

Total Revenues 23,872,517$      16,925,051$      5,573,887$         22,498,938$      (1,373,579)$       70.9%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 12,602,295$        9,222,404$           2,535,424$           11,757,828$        (844,467)$             73.2%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Related Benefits 5,040,918             3,307,376             887,398                 4,194,774             (846,144)               65.6%

Total Personal Services 17,643,213$      12,529,780$      3,422,822$         15,952,602$      (1,690,611)$       71.0%

  Travel 20,000                   20,000                   20,617                   40,617                   20,617                   100.0%

  Operating Services 2,069,190             3,439,131             581,425                 4,020,556             1,951,366             166.2%

  Supplies 214,000                 34,929                   40,071                   75,000                   (139,000)               16.3%

Total Operating Expenses 2,303,190$         3,494,060$         642,113$             4,136,173$         1,832,983$         151.7%

  Professional Services 99,892                   34,288                   10,503                   44,791                   (55,101)                 

  Other Charges 3,152,024             324,288                 352,712                 677,000                 (2,475,024)           10.3%

  Debt Services -                               -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 299,198                 678,416                 -                               678,416                 379,218.00           226.7%

Total Other Charges 3,551,114$         1,036,992$         363,215$             1,400,207$         (2,150,907)$       29.2%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions 125,000                 182,419                 -                               182,419                 57,419.00             145.9%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 125,000$             182,419$             -$                            182,419$             57,419$               145.9%

  Scholarships 250,000                 827,537                 -                               827,537                 577,537                 331.0%

Total Expenditures 23,872,517$      18,070,788$      4,428,150$         22,498,938$      (1,373,579)$       75.7%
   

Southern University New Orleans Campus

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024 

Page 5



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 7,531,907$           5,178,182$           2,353,725$           7,531,907$           -$                             68.7%

Statutory Dedicated 529,902                 96,314                   433,588                 529,902                 -                               18.2%

Federal -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 3,961,944             3,558,880             -                               3,558,880             (403,064)               89.8%

    Tuition - Spring 2024 3,432,744             3,007,983             -                               3,007,983             (424,761)               87.6%

    Tuition - Summer 537,371                 320,543                 216,828                 537,371                 -                               59.7%

    Out-of-State Fees 181,500                 285,375                 -                               285,375                 103,875                 157.2%

    Other 1,170,391             553,304                 617,087                 1,170,391             -                               47.3%

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               

Total Revenues 17,345,759$      13,000,581$      3,621,228$         16,621,809$      (723,950)$           74.9%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 8,728,932$           5,321,507$           2,166,029$           7,487,536$           (1,241,396)$         61.0%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Related Benefits 3,868,603             2,285,671             1,016,807             3,302,478             (566,125)               59.1%

Total Personal Services 12,597,535$      7,607,178$         3,182,836$         10,790,014$      (1,807,521)$       60.4%

  Travel 43,000                   34,830                   15,000                   49,830                   6,830                      81.0%

  Operating Services 2,592,161             1,689,733             902,428                 2,592,161             -                               65.2%

  Supplies 102,500                 166,754                 65,000                   231,754                 129,254                 162.7%

Total Operating Expenses 2,737,661$         1,891,317$         982,428$             2,873,745$         136,084$             69.1%

  Professional Services 20,000                   134,257                 100,000                 234,257                 214,257                 671.3%

  Other Charges 426,000                 596,631                 490,259                 1,086,890             660,890                 140.1%

  Debt Services -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 1,464,563             805,259                 659,304                 1,464,563             -                               55.0%

Total Other Charges 1,910,563$         1,536,147$         1,249,563$         2,785,710$         875,147$             80.4%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            0.0%

  Scholarships 100,000                 157,340                 15,000                   172,340                 72,340                   157.3%

Total Expenditures 17,345,759$      11,191,982$      5,429,827$         16,621,809$      (723,950)$           64.5%
   

Southern University Shreveport Campus

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024 

Page 6



FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 11,123,420$        7,647,348$           3,476,072$           11,123,420$        -$                             68.7%

Statutory Dedicated 1,802,695             425,396                 1,377,299             1,802,695             -                               23.6%

Federal 3,654,209             910,945                 2,743,264             3,654,209             -                               24.9%

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2023 -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

    Tuition - Spring 2024 -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

    Tuition - Summer -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

    Out-of-State Fees -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

    Other -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Revenues 16,580,324$      8,983,689$         7,596,635$         16,580,324$      -$                            54.2%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 6,331,462$           4,802,028$           1,529,434$           6,331,462$           -$                             75.8%

  Other Compensation 128,882                 37,500                   91,382                   128,882                 -                               29.1%

  Related Benefits 2,951,578             1,657,292             1,294,286             2,951,578             -                               56.1%

Total Personal Services 9,411,922$         6,496,820$         2,915,102$         9,411,922$         -$                            69.0%

  Travel 231,441                 134,045                 97,396                   231,441                 -                               57.9%

  Operating Services 522,432                 635,641                 (113,209)               522,432                 -                               121.7%

  Supplies 471,361                 134,757                 336,604                 471,361                 -                               28.6%

Total Operating Expenses 1,225,234$         904,443$             320,791$             1,225,234$         -$                            73.8%

  Professional Services 105,000                 95,093                   9,907                      105,000                 -                               90.6%

  Other Charges 2,285,808             29,141                   2,256,667             2,285,808             -                               1.3%

  Debt Services -                               -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 825,736                 347,921                 477,815                 825,736                 -                               42.1%

Total Other Charges 3,216,544$         472,155$             2,744,389$         3,216,544$         -$                            14.7%

  General Acquisitions 293,310                 193,001                 100,309                 293,310                 -                               65.8%

  Library Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Major Repairs 2,433,314             2,803                      2,430,511             2,433,314             -                               0.1%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 2,726,624$         195,804$             2,530,820$         2,726,624$         -$                            7.2%

  Scholarships -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Expenditures 16,580,324$      8,069,221$         8,511,103$         16,580,324$      -$                            48.7%

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024 

Page 7





























































































































































































































































































CONTRACT  
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE  

NAME OF DEPARTMENT/AGENCY 
Office of Facility Services – Physical Plant 

AND 
CONTRACTOR NAME 
G.E.C., Inc. 
 
CONTRACT/PROPOSAL NUMBER  
Proposal Number 50016-10314 
 

TYPE OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES   ☒ CONSULTING SERVICES   ☐ SOCIAL SERVICES   ☐ PERSONAL SERVICES   ☐ 
 

 

CONTRACTOR (Legal Name if Corporation)    FEDERAL EMPLOYER TAX ID NUMBER 
G.E.C., Inc.        72-1268093 
          
STREET ADDRESS       TELEPHONE NUMBER 
8282 Goodwood Boulevard      225-612-3000 
CITY  Baton Rouge    STATE  Louisiana  ZIP CODE  70806 
 

 
TERM OF CONTRACT  
This Contract shall begin on April 1, 2024 and shall end on April 1, 2025. The University has the right to extend this 
Contract up to a total of three years with the concurrence of the Contractor and all appropriate approvals. With 
all proper approvals and concurrence of the Contractor at the same rates, terms and conditions of the initial 
Contract term. The total contract term, with extensions, shall not exceed five (5) years. The continuation of this 
Contract is contingent upon the appropriation of funds by the legislature to fulfill the requirements of the 
Contract. 
 
COMPENSATION AND MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF CONTRACT 
In consideration of the services required by this Contract, the University hereby agrees to pay to Contractor a 
maximum fee of $ 1,300,000.00. Payments are predicated upon successful completion of the services described 
in Description of Services and acceptance of deliverables described in Acceptance of Deliverables; receipt of an 
invoice; and written approval of Linda Antoine, Director of Purchasing.  
 
The University shall make every reasonable effort to make payments within 25 business days of receiving an 
invoice. Contractor shall comply with the Division of Administration State General Travel Regulations, as set forth 
in the Division of Administration Policy and Procedure Memorandum No. 49.  
 
PROHIBITION AGAINST ADVANCE PAYMENTS 
No compensation or payment of any nature shall be made in advance of services actually performed, unless 
allowed by law. 
 
 



GOALS AND OBJECTIVES  
Southern University wishes to establish a proactive planning process for the execution of utility infrastructure 
enhancements. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 
Contractor agrees to furnish services to the University as specified in this Section and in any attachments.  
Scope of work to include: 

1. Review existing utility documents. 
2. Geolocate and map utility assets across the main campus. 
3. Categorize the existing utility conditions, helping prioritize necessary projects. 
4. Assess current and prospective utility capacity for existing campus structures. 
5. Determine future utility capacity and routing for planned campus expansions. 

Utility Systems within the project to include potable water, sanitary sewer, natural gas, drainage, electrical, 
exterior lighting, data and telecommunications. 
 
Remaining details are included in Attachment A. 
 
A full description of the scope of services is contained in the following documents, which are made a part of this 
Contract: 

• Statement of Work 
• Contractor Personnel and Other Resources 

 
DELIVERABLES 
The Contract will be considered complete when Contractor has delivered and the University has accepted all 
deliverables specified in the Statement of Work. 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF DELIVERABLES  
Deliverables shall be submitted, reviewed, and accepted according to the following procedure:  
 

A. General. The University shall accept work performed in accordance with the Statement of Work 
and/or as subsequently modified in University approved documents.  

 
B. Submittal and Review. Contractor shall provide written notification to the University Project 

Director/Manager that a Deliverable is completed, and available for review and acceptance.  
 

Upon Contractor’s written notification, the University Project Director/Manager shall review the 
Deliverable within 10 days. Within this period, the University Project Director/Manager shall direct 
the appropriate review process; coordinate any review outside the Project team; and present results 
to any appropriate committee(s) for acceptance. The review process shall be comprehensive—
identifying all items that must be modified or added.   

 
C. Acceptance or Rejection. A Deliverable shall be considered accepted unless, within the 10 days, the 

University Project Director/Manager notifies the Contractor in writing that the Deliverable is rejected 
and specifies the items that, if modified or added, will cause the Deliverable to be accepted.  A failure 
to submit all or any essential part of a Deliverable shall be cause for rejection of the Deliverable.  

 



D. Resubmitting Deliverables. Contractor shall provide written notification to the University Project 
Director/Manger when the Contractor resubmits a Deliverable for acceptance. The University Project 
Director/Manger shall review the resubmitted Deliverable within 5 business days. A resubmitted 
Deliverable shall be considered accepted unless, within this period, the University Project Director 
notifies the Contractor in writing that the resubmitted Deliverable is rejected and specifies the items 
that, if modified or added, will cause the resubmitted Deliverable to be accepted. The parties shall 
repeat this process until the resubmitted Deliverable is accepted, or the University determines that 
the Contractor has breached the Contract and places the Contractor in default.   

 
TERMS OF PAYMENT  
The Contractor may submit invoices, not more frequently than monthly. If progress and/or completion of services 
are provided to the satisfaction of the initiating Office/Facility, payments are to be made as follows: 
 
Payment will be made based on completion of services per task specific within the deliverables section of the 
statement of work. 
 
Such payment amounts for work performed must be based on at least equivalent services rendered, and to the 
extent practical, will be keyed to clearly identifiable stages of progress as reflected in written reports submitted 
with the invoices. Contractor will not be paid more than the maximum amount of the Contract. 
 
PAYMENT WILL BE MADE ONLY UPON APPROVAL OF  
Ken Dawson, System Director of Facilities Planning 
 
VETERAN/HUDSON SMALL ENTREPRENEURSHIP PROGRAM PARTICIPATION  
 
During the term of the Contract and at expiration, the Contractor will be required to report Veteran-Owned and 
Service-Connected Disabled Veteran-Owned and Hudson Initiative small entrepreneurship subcontractor 
participation and the dollar amount of each.  
 
SUBSTITUTION OF KEY PERSONNEL 
The Contractor's personnel assigned to this Contract shall not be replaced without the written consent of the 
University. Such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed provided an equally qualified replacement 
is offered. In the event that any University or Contractor personnel become unavailable due to resignation, illness, 
or other factors, excluding assignment to project outside this contract, outside of the University's or Contractor's 
reasonable control, as the case may be, the University or the Contractor, shall be responsible for providing an 
equally qualified replacement in time to avoid delays in completing tasks. The Contractor will make every 
reasonable attempt to assign the personnel listed in his proposal. 
 
STATE FURNISHED RESOURCES  
The University shall appoint a Project Manager for this Contract who will provide oversight of the activities 
conducted hereunder. Notwithstanding the Contractor’s responsibility for management during the performance 
of this Contract, the assigned Project Manager shall be the principal point of contact on behalf of the University 
and will be the principal point of contact for Contractor concerning Contractor’s performance under this Contract. 
 
TAXES 
Before the Contract may be approved, La. R.S. 39:1624(A)(10) requires the Office of State Procurement to 
determine that the Contractor shall be in compliance with filing of all applicable tax returns and reports and in the 
payment of all taxes, interest, penalties, and fees owed to the State and collected by the Department of Revenue. 



The State’s obligations are conditioned on the Contractor resolving any identified outstanding tax compliance 
discrepancies with the Louisiana Department of Revenue within seven (7) days of such notification. If the 
Contractor fails to resolve the identified outstanding tax compliance discrepancies within seven days of 
notification, then the using agency may proceed with alternate arrangements without notice to the Contractor 
and without penalty. 
 
TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 
Should the University determine that the Contractor has failed to comply with the Contract’s terms, the University 
may terminate the Contract for cause by giving the Contractor written notice specifying the Contractor’s failure. 
If the University determines that the failure is not correctable, then the Contract shall terminate on the date 
specified in such notice. If the University determines that the failure may be corrected, the University shall give a 
deadline for the Contractor to make the correction.  If the University determines that the failure is not corrected 
by the deadline, then the University may give additional time for the Contractor to make the corrections or the 
University may notify the Contractor of the Contract termination date.  
 
If the Contractor seeks to terminate the Contract, the Contractor shall file a complaint with the Chief Procurement 
Officer under La. R.S. 39:1672.2-1672.4. 
 
TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 
The University may terminate the Contract at any time without penalty by giving thirty (30) days written notice to 
the Contractor of such termination or negotiating with the Contractor a termination date. Contractor shall be 
entitled to payment for deliverables in progress, to the extent the University determines that the work is 
acceptable. 
 
REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT 
Any claim or controversy arising out of this Contract shall be resolved by the provisions of LSA - R.S. 39:1672.2 - 
1672.4. 
 
GOVERNING LAW 
This Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana, including 
but not limited to La. R.S. 39:1551-1736; rules and regulations; executive orders; standard terms and conditions, 
special terms and conditions, and specifications listed in the RFP (if applicable); and this Contract. Venue of any 
action brought, after exhaustion of administrative remedies, with regard to this Contract shall be in the 
Nineteenth Judicial District Court, Parish of East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana. 
 
E-VERIFY 
Contractor acknowledges and agrees to comply with the provisions of La. R.S. 38:2212.10 and federal law 
pertaining to E-Verify in the performance of services under this Contract. 
 
OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT  
All software, data files, documentation, records, worksheets, or any other related materials developed under this 
Contract shall become the property of the University upon creation. All material related to the Contract and/or 
obtained or prepared by Contractor in connection with the performance of the services contracted for herein shall 
become the property of University, and shall be returned by Contractor to University, at Contractor's expense, at 
termination or expiration of the Contract. 
 
 
 



DATA/RECORD RETENTION  
Contractor shall retain all its books, records, and other documents relevant to this Contract and the funds 
expended hereunder for at least five (5) years after final payment, or as required by applicable Federal law, if 
Federal funds are used to fund this Contract. Contractor shall comply with all applicable State and Federal laws 
regarding data retention and provide for a transition period that accommodates all data retention requirements 
of the State, including data retained and length of retention, following Contract termination, regardless of the 
reason for Contract termination.  Additionally, all State data must be sanitized in compliance with the most 
currently approved revision of NIST SP 800-66. 
 
RECORD OWNERSHIP 
All records, reports, documents and other material delivered or transmitted to Contractor by University shall 
remain the property of University, and shall be returned by Contractor to University, at Contractor's expense, at 
termination or expiration of the Contract. All material related to the Contract and/or obtained or prepared by 
Contractor in connection with the performance of the services contracted for herein shall become the property 
of University, and shall be returned by Contractor to University, at Contractor's expense, at termination or 
expiration of the Contract.  
 
CONTRACTOR’S COOPERATION 
The Contractor has the duty to fully cooperate with the University and provide any and all requested information, 
documentation, etc. to the University when requested. This applies even if this Contract is terminated and/or a 
lawsuit is filed. Specifically, the Contractor shall not limit or impede the University’s right to audit or shall not 
withhold University owned documents. 
 
ASSIGNABILITY 
No contractor shall assign any interest in this contract by assignment, transfer, or notation without prior written 
consent of the University. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit the contractor from assigning his bank, 
trust company, or other financial institution any money due or to become due from approved contracts without 
such prior written consent. Notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be furnished promptly to the 
University. 
 
RIGHT TO AUDIT 
Any authorized agency of the State (e.g. Office of the Legislative Auditor, Inspector General's Office, etc.) and of 
the Federal Government has the right to inspect and review all books and records pertaining to services rendered 
under this contract for a period of five years from the date of final payment under the prime contract and any 
subcontract. The Contractor and subcontractor shall maintain such books and records for this five-year period and 
cooperate fully with the authorized auditing agency. Contractor and subcontractor shall comply with federal and 
state laws authorizing an audit of their operations as a whole, or of specific program activities. 
 
FISCAL FUNDING 
The continuation of this Contract is contingent upon the appropriation of funds to fulfill the requirements of the 
Contract by the legislature. If the legislature fails to appropriate sufficient monies to provide for the continuation 
of the Contract, or if such appropriation is reduced by the veto of the Governor or by any means provided in the 
appropriations act to prevent the total appropriation for the year from exceeding revenues for that year, or for 
any other lawful purpose, and the effect of such reduction is to provide insufficient monies for the continuation 
of the Contract, the Contract shall terminate on the date of the beginning of the first fiscal year for which funds 
are not appropriated. 
 
 



NON-DISCRIMINATION  
Contractor agrees to abide by the requirements of the following as applicable and amended:  Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972; Federal 
Executive Order 11246; the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment Assistance Act of 
1974; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; Age Discrimination Act of 1975; Fair Housing Act of 1968; 
and, Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
 
Contractor agrees not to discriminate in its employment practices, and shall render services under this Contract 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, veteran status, political affiliation, 
disability, or age in any matter relating to employment. Any act of discrimination committed by Contractor, or 
failure to comply with these statutory obligations when applicable shall be grounds for termination of this 
Contract.  
 
CONTINUING OBLIGATION 
Contractor has a continuing obligation to disclose any suspensions or debarment by any government entity, 
including but not limited to General Services Administration (GSA). Failure to disclosed may constitute grounds 
for suspension and/or termination of the Contract and debarment from future Contracts. 
 
ELIGIBILITY STATUS 
Contractor, and each tier of Subcontractors, shall certify that it is not on the List of Parties Excluded from Federal 
Procurement or Nonprocurement Programs promulgated in accordance with E.O.s 12549 and 12689, "Debarment 
and Suspension," as set forth at 24 CFR part 24. 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY  
Contractor shall protect from unauthorized use and disclosure all information relating to the University's 
operations and data (e.g. financial, statistical, personal, technical, etc.) that becomes available to the Contractor 
in carrying out this Contract. Contractor shall use protecting measures that are the same or more effective than 
those used by the University. Contractor is not required to protect information or data that is publicly available 
outside the scope of this Contract; already rightfully in the Contractor's possession; independently developed by 
the Contractor outside the scope of this Contract; or rightfully obtained from third parties.    
 
AMENDMENTS 
Any modification to the provisions of this Contract shall be in writing, signed by all parties, and approved by the 
required authorities.  
 
PROHIBITED USE OF FUNDS  
Contractor shall not use funds received for services rendered under this Contract to urge an elector to vote for or 
against any candidate or proposition on an election ballot, or to lobby for or against any matter the Louisiana 
Legislature or a local governing authority is considering to become law. This provision shall not prevent the normal 
dissemination of factual information relative to any proposition on an election ballot or any matter being 
considered by the Louisiana Legislature or a local governing authority.  
 
SUBCONTRACTORS  
The Contractor may, with prior written permission from the University, enter into subcontracts with third parties 
for the performance of any part of the Contractor’s duties and obligations. In no event shall the existence of a 
subcontract operate to release or reduce the liability of the Contractor to the University for any breach in the 
performance of the Contractor's duties. The Contractor will be the single point of contact for all subcontractor 
work. 



 
PROHIBITION OF DISCRIMINATORY BOYCOTTS OF ISRAEL 
In accordance with La. R.S. 39:1602.1, for any contract for $100,000 or more and for any Contractor with five or 
more employees, Contractor, or any Subcontractor, shall certify it is not engaging in a boycott of Israel, and shall, 
for the duration of this Contract, refrain from a boycott of Israel. 
 
The University reserves the right to terminate this Contract if the Contractor, or any Subcontractor, engages in a 
boycott of Israel during the term of the Contract. 
 
DUTY TO DEFEND 
Upon notice of any claim, demand, suit, or cause of action against the University, alleged to arise out of or be 
related to this Contract, Contractor shall investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense for, and defend at its 
sole expense, even if the claim, demand, suit, or cause of action is groundless, false, or fraudulent.  The University 
may, but is not required to, consult with or assist the Contractor, but this assistance shall not affect the 
Contractor’s obligations, duties, and responsibilities under this section. Contractor shall obtain the University’s 
written consent before entering into any settlement or dismissal. 
 
LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
CONTRACTOR LIABILITY 
Contractor shall be liable without limitation to the University for any and all injury, death, damage, loss, 
destruction, damages, costs, fines, penalties, judgments, forfeitures, assessments, expenses (including attorney 
fees), obligations, and other liabilities of every name and description, which may occur or in any way arise out of 
any act or omission of Contractor, its owners, agents, employees, partners or subcontractors.  
 
FORCE MAJEURE 
It is understood and agreed that neither party can foresee the exigencies beyond the control of each party which 
arise by reason of an Act of God or force majeure; therefore, neither party shall be liable for any delay or failure 
in performance beyond its control resulting from an Act of God or force majeure. The University shall determine 
whether a delay or failure results from an Act of God or force majeure based on its review of all facts and 
circumstances. The parties shall use reasonable efforts, including but not limited to, use of continuation of 
operations plans (COOP), business continuity plans, and disaster recovery plans, to eliminate or minimize the 
effect of such events upon the performance of their respective duties under this Contract. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION   
Contractor shall fully indemnify and hold harmless the University, without limitation, for any and all injury, death, 
damage, loss, destruction, damages, costs, fines, penalties, judgments, forfeitures, assessments, expenses 
(including attorney fees), obligations, and other liabilities of every name and description, which may occur or in 
any way arise out of any act or omission of Contractor, its owners, agents, employees, partners or subcontractors. 
The Contractor shall not indemnify for the portion of any loss or damage arising from the University’s act or failure 
to act.    
 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INDEMNIFICATION 
Contractor shall fully indemnify and hold harmless the University, without limitation, from and against damages, 
costs, fines, penalties, judgments, forfeitures, assessments, expenses (including attorney fees), obligations, and 
other liabilities in any action for infringement of any intellectual property right, including but not limited to, 
trademark, trade-secret, copyright, and patent rights.  
 



When a dispute or claim arises relative to a real or anticipated infringement, the Contractor, at its sole expense, 
shall submit information and documentation, including formal patent attorney opinions, as required by the 
University.  
 
If the use of the product, material, service, or any component thereof is enjoined for any reason or if the 
Contractor believes that it may be enjoined, Contractor, while ensuring appropriate migration and 
implementation, data integrity, and minimal delays of performance, shall at its sole expense and in the following 
order of precedence: (i) obtain for the University the right to continue using such product, material, service, or 
component thereof; (ii) modify the product, material, service, or component thereof so that it becomes a non-
infringing product, material, or service of at least equal quality and performance; (iii) replace the product, 
material, service, or component thereof so that it becomes a non-infringing product, material, or service of at 
least equal quality and performance; or, (iv) provide the University monetary compensation for all payments made 
under the Contract related to the infringing product, material, service, or component, plus for all costs incurred 
to procure and implement a non-infringing product, material, or service of at least equal quality and performance. 
Until this obligation has been satisfied, the Contractor remains in default.  
 
The Contractor shall not be obligated to indemnify that portion of a claim or dispute based upon the University’s 
unauthorized: i) modification or alteration of the product, material or service; ii) use of the product, material or 
service in combination with other products not furnished by Contractor; or, iii) use of the product, material or 
service in other than the specified operating conditions and environment.  
 
LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 
For all claims against the Contractor not governed by any other provision of this Section, regardless of the basis 
on which the claim is made, the Contractor's liability for direct damages shall be limited to two times the maximum 
dollar amount of the Contract. 
 
The Contractor shall not be liable for incidental, indirect, special, or consequential damages, unless otherwise 
specifically enumerated herein, or in a resulting task order or purchase order mutually agreed upon between the 
parties. In no circumstance shall the University be liable for incidental, indirect, special, or consequential damages; 
lost profits; lost revenue; or lost institutional operating savings. 
 
OTHER REMEDIES 
If the Contractor fails to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract, or if any lien or 
claim for damages, penalties, costs and the like is asserted by or against the University, then, upon notice to the 
Contractor, the University may pursue all remedies available to it at law or equity, including retaining monies from 
amounts due the Contractor and proceeding against any surety of the Contractor. 
 
STAFF INSURANCE  
Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Contract insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. The cost of such insurance 
shall be included in the total Contract amount. For insurance requirements, refer to Exhibit A. 
 
LICENSES AND PERMITS   
Contractor shall secure and maintain all licenses and permits, and pay inspection fees required to do the work 
required to complete this Contract.  
 
 



SECURITY  
Contractor's personnel shall always comply with all security regulations in effect at the University's premises, and 
externally for materials belonging to the University or to the project. Contractor is responsible for reporting any 
breach of security to the University promptly. 
 
CYBERSECURITY TRAINING 
In accordance with La. R.S. 42:1267(B)(3) and the State of Louisiana’s Information Security Policy, if the Contractor, 
any of its employees, agents, or subcontractors will have access to State government information technology 
assets, the Contractor’s employees, agents, or subcontractors with such access must complete cybersecurity 
training annually, and the Contractor must present evidence of such compliance annually and upon request. The 
Contractor may use the cybersecurity training course offered by the Louisiana Department of State Civil Service 
without additional cost or may use any alternate course approved in writing by the Office of Technology Services. 
 
For purposes of this Section, “access to State government information technology assets” means the possession 
of credentials, equipment, or authorization to access the internal workings of State information technology 
systems or networks. Examples would include but not be limited to State-issued laptops, VPN credentials to 
credentials to access the State network, badging to access the State’s telecommunications closets or systems, or 
permissions to maintain or modify IT systems used by the State. Final determination of scope inclusions or 
exclusions relative to access to State government information technology assets will be made by the Office of 
Technology Services. 
 
CODE OF ETHICS   
The Contractor acknowledges that Chapter 15 of Title 42 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes (R.S. 42:1101 et. seq., 
Code of Governmental Ethics) applies to the Contracting Party in the performance of services called for in this 
Contract. The Contractor agrees to immediately notify the state if potential violations of the Code of 
Governmental Ethics arise at any time during the term of this Contract. 
 
SEVERABILITY  
If any term or condition of this Contract or the application thereof is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect 
other terms, conditions, or applications which can be given effect without the invalid term, condition, or 
application; to this end the terms and conditions of this Contract are declared severable. 
 
OUTSOURCING OF KEY INTERNAL CONTROLS 
(Applicable if outsourcing a key internal control. Note that if the scope of work involves information technology, 
the IT/Data Processing contract template should be used instead, along with this language)   
The University will also require the Contractor and /or subcontractors, if performing a key internal control, to 
submit to an independent SSAE 18 SOC 1 and/or type II audit of its internal controls and other financial and 
performance audits from outside companies to assure both the financial viability of the (outsourced) program and 
the operational viability, including the policies and procedures placed into operation. The audit firm will conduct 
tests and render an independent opinion on the operating effectiveness of the controls and procedures.  
 
The Contractor could be required to provide a quality control plan, such as third party Quality Assurance (QA), 
Independent Verification and Validation (IV &V), and other internal project/ program reviews and audits.  
 
These audits will require the Contractor to provide any assistance, records access, information system access, staff 
access, and space access to the party selected to perform the indicated audit. The audit firm will submit a final 
report on controls placed in operations for the project and include a detailed description of the audit firm’s tests 
of the operating effectiveness of controls.  



 
The Contractor shall supply the Department with an exact copy of the report within thirty (30) calendar days of 
completion. Such audits may be performed annually during the term of the contract. The Contractor agrees to 
implement recommendations as suggested by the audits within three months of report issuance at no cost to the 
University. Cost of the SSAE 18 audit is to be included in the cost being proposed in response to this RFP. 
 
HEADINGS  
Descriptive headings in this Contract are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction or meaning of 
contractual language. 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 
This Contract, (together with the Request for Proposals and addenda issued thereto by the University, the 
proposal submitted by the Contractor in response to the University’s Request for Proposals, and any exhibits 
specifically incorporated herein by reference) constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect 
to the subject matter. 
 
This Contract shall, to the extent possible, be construed to give effect to all provisions contained therein: however, 
where provisions are in conflict, first priority shall be given to the provisions of the Contract, excluding the Request 
for Proposals and the Proposal; second priority shall be given to the provisions of the Request for Proposals and 
amendments thereto; and third priority shall be given to the provisions of the Proposal. 
 
CONTRACT APPROVAL 
This Contract is not effective until executed by all parties and approved in writing by the Southern University Board 
of Supervisor and Southern University President-Chancellor. 
 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS 
See Exhibit A.  
 
The cost of such insurance shall be included in the total Contract amount. 
 
 
THUS DONE AND SIGNED AT Baton Rouge, Louisiana on the day, month and year first written above. IN WITNESS 
WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement. 
 

WITNESSES SIGNATURES:                          SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE 
  

By: 

 

  

Title: 

 

WITNESSES SIGNATURES:  

 

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE: 
  

By: 

 

  

Title: 

 

 
  



OPTIONAL FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 
  
ANTI-KICKBACK CLAUSE 
Contractor agrees to adhere to the mandate dictated by the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act which provides that 
each Contractor or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the 
completion of work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. 
 
CLEAN AIR ACT 
Contractor agrees to adhere to the provisions which require compliance with all applicable standards, orders or 
requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act which prohibits the use under nonexempt Federal 
contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA list of Violating Facilities. 
 
ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT 
Contractor recognizes the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency with are contained in 
the State energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-
163). 
 
CLEAN WATER ACT 
Contractor agrees to adhere to all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under Section 508 of the 
Clean Water Act which prohibits the use under nonexempt Federal contracts, grants, or loans of facilities included 
on the EPA List of Violating Facilities. 
 

 
STATEMENT OF WORK 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Contractor shall perform services according to the terms of this Contract and according to the Statement of 
Work (SOW) further described in Attachment A. 
 
INTRODUCTION 
Information is included in Attachment A. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES/TASKS 
Information is included in Attachments A and B. 
 
SCHEDULE REQUIREMENTS 
Anticipated project duration is 12 months, broken down into three phases: Phase 0, Phase 1, and Phase 2. Phase 
0 includes existing document review and geolocation planning. Expected duration and completion of Phase 0 
deliverables is 1 month. Phase 1 includes utility inventory geodatabase with technical memoranda documenting 
existing condition and capacity assessments and methodologies. Expected duration and completion of Phase 1 
deliverables is 8 months. Phase 2 includes project definition statements for proposed improvements to improve 
system reliability. Expected duration and completion of Phase 2 deliverables is 3 months. In depth detail of each 
phase and task is included in Attachment B. 
 
 
 
 



PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND MONITORING PLAN 
Performance will be monitored and evaluated for each delivered task to assess compliance with specifications 
and schedule. 
 
The performance of the contract will be measured by the Project Director/Manger, authorized on behalf of the 
University, to evaluate the Contractor’s performance against the criteria in the Statement of Work and are 
identified as: 
All tasks shall be completed and deliverable within the timeline set for each individual phase of the project. 
Following completion of a task, work cannot begin on subsequent tasks without written notification from the 
Project Director/Manager. 
 
MONITORING PLAN  
Ken Dawson, System Director of Facilities Planning, will monitor the services provided by the Contractor and the 
expenditure of funds under this Contract. Maurice Pitts, Director of Facilities for the Southern University Baton 
Rouge campus, will be primarily responsible for the day-to-day contact with the Contractor and day-to-day 
monitoring of the Contractor’s performance.  
 
DELIVERABLES 
Contractor agrees to provide the following deliverables within the time frames specified herein: 
 
Phase 0 (Completion Time – 1 month) 
-Task 0 – Existing Document Review and Geolocation Planning 
 
Phase 1 (Completion Time – 8 months) 
-Task 1 – Utility Field Survey 
-Task 2 – Development of Geodatabase/GIS System 
-Task 3 – Drainage System Assessment 
-Task 4 – Wastewater System Assessment 
-Task 5 – Potable Water Distribution System Assessment 
-Task 6 – Electrical Power System Assessment 
-Task 7 – Lighting System Assessment 
-Task 8 – Natural Gas System Assessment 
 
Phase 2 (Completion Time – 3 months) 
-Task 9 – Data Telecommunications 
-Task 10 – Coordination with Pipeline Companies/Railroad 
-Task 11 – Master Plan Report 
 
To see tasks described in further detail, see Attachment B. 
 
 
 

CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL AND OTHER RESOURCES 
 
CONTRACTOR RESOURCES 



Contractor agrees to provide the following Contract related resources: 
 

A. Project Manager. Contractor shall provide a project manager to provide day-to-day management of 
project tasks and activities, coordination of Contractor support and administrative activities, and for 
supervision of Contractor employees. The project manager shall possess the technical and functional 
skills and knowledge to direct all aspects of the project. 

 
B. Key Personnel. Contractor shall assign staff who possess the knowledge, skills, and abilities to 

successfully perform assigned tasks. Individuals to be assigned by the Contractor are listed in 
Attachment A. 

 
C. Personnel Changes. Contractor's Project Manager and other key personnel assigned to this Contract 

shall not be replaced without the written consent of the University. Such consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed provided an equally qualified replacement is offered. In the event 
that any University or Contractor personnel become unavailable due to resignation, illness or other 
factors, excluding assignment to project outside this contract, outside of the University's or Contractor's 
reasonable control, as the case may be, the University or the Contractor, as the case may be, shall be 
responsible for providing an equally qualified replacement in time to avoid delays to the work plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL 
 
The following individuals are assigned to the project, on a full time basis (unless otherwise indicated), and in the 
capacities set forth below: 
 
Name  Company Responsibilities Classification Rate    Expected Duration 
 
Cary Bourgeois  Principal   $276.00 282 hrs    100% 
Alejandro Flores Project Manager  $212.00 846 hrs    100% 
   Senior Engineer   $200.00 1,168 hrs   100% 
   Project Engineer  $150.00 1,552 hrs   100% 
   Engineering Intern  $116.00 2,157 hrs   100% 
   Engineering Technician  $120.00 958 hrs    100% 
   CADD Operator   $130.00 1,237 hrs   100% 
   Senior Field Representative $91.00  100 hrs    20% 
   Clerical    $90.00  138 hrs    100% 
 
 



































































































































































Mission Statement 
Through shared governance, leadership, and a diverse system of unique  

institutions, the mission of the Southern University and A&M College System is to deliver affordable 
world-class education, a trained workforce, state-of-the-art research, creative scholarship, and 

transformational public service to the State of Louisiana, the Nation, and the World. 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
(Following Personnel Affairs Committee) 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
1.       Call to Order  

 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Adoption of the Agenda 
 
4. Public Comments 
 
5.     Resolutions 

6.      Action Item(s) 1 
 

A. Approval of Minutes of the March 15, 2024, SUS Board of Supervisors Meeting  
(SUS) 
 

B.  Request Approval of Committee Reports and Recommendations (SUS)  
 

C. Request Approval to Rename and Restructure the Office of Equity and Inclusion 
and Title IX (SULC) 
 

D. Request Approval to Proceed with Litigation to Recover for Fire/Water Damage 
at Shreve Library (SULC)  

 
E. Request Approval of Second Amendment to Service Agreement with Advanced 

Biomedics, LLC and to Authorize the President with Chairman Approval to Send 
any Notices Deemed Necessary and Appropriate. (SUAREC)  
  

F. Request Approval to Extend the Contract of DeCuir, Clark & Adams, LLP for 
Professional Legal Services (SUS) 

 
G. Request Approval of Chancellor Orlando McMeans’ Contract (SUAREC 

 
 

 
1 Pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statute 42:17, executive session may be required 



7. Other Business 

 
8. Adjournment  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

   
 SU LABORATORY SCHOOL COMMITTEE 

March 22, 2024 
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA.  

 

MINUTES 
 

 
The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board Chair Myron K. Lawson.  
 
Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the SU Laboratory School Committee. Chair Dr. Rani Whitfield called 
the committee meeting to order. 
 
 
The invocation was given by Dr. Mary Whitley Moss. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Brian Hilton an exceptional student 
at Southern University Laboratory School.   
 
AGENDA ITEM 3:  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Above and Beyond Award 
Ms. Tashieka Davis introduced Ms. Oretha Lee; Financial Aid - Southern University Baton Rouge (SUBR) 
Ms. Lee thanked everyone for the award.  
 
B. Esports Trade Association Presentation 

Presentation done via zoom – Christopher Turner 
 
Recognition of Special Guests (Chairman Lawson) 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  ROLL CALL by President Dennis Shields 
 
Present:  Dr. Rani Whitfield - Chairman, Mrs. Ann Smith –Vice-Chair, Mrs. Christy Reeves, Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert 
and Mry Jyron Young and Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio 
 
Absent:  Mr. Paul Matthews 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
There was a motion by Ms. Christy Reeves and second by Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert; the agenda was recommended for 
adoption. 
 
Motion Approved. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None 
 
 AGENDA ITEM 7:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s) 
 

A. Update on SULS Academic Performance 
Mr. Brister gave an update on Southern University Laboratory School’s Performance. 
 



2 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

SULS Concert Choir was in attendance and provided a song selection.   
 

There were comments and accolades given by several board members.   
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 8:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 9:  ADJUOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Christy Reeves to adjourn the meeting.   
  



3 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

 
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

(Following SU Laboratory School Committee) 
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA.  

 

AGENDA 
 

 
Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Academic Affairs Committee. Member Dr. Leon Tarver 
called the committee meeting to order. 

Roll Call by President Dennis Shields 

Present: Dr. Leon Tarver – Chairman and Mr. Sam Gilliam – Vice Chairman, Atty Tony Clayton, Mrs. Maple 
Gaines, Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr Arlanda Williams, and Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio 

Absent: NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 3:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

There was a motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and second by Mrs. Ann Smith to adopt the agenda. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(s) 
 
There was a motion by Atty Tony Clayton and second by Ms Maple Gaines to approve Action Items 5 A & B in 
Global.   
 
Motion passed.  
 

A. Request Approval to Award Dr. Demetria McJulien-Lassiter as Chair Emeritus of the Department of 
Social Work. (SUBR) 
 

B. Request Approval to Restore Endowed Professorships in the College of Business for the 2024-2026 Period  
 



4 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

and Appoint the Following Four Professors who were Selected by the Committee Based on Performance (SUBR. 
 

 
C. Request Approval to Host Separate Commencement Ceremonies for Undergraduate and Graduate 

Students. (SUBR) 
 
Chancellor Pierre gave a summary of Item 5C.  There was lengthy discussion among the board members who 
were concerned about the research and logic behind the request. Chancellor Pierre explained to the board 
members.  Atty Clayton made a motion to defer this request for at least 30 in order to get the student input 
whether it be through a survey or necessary tool, but the students’ input is important.  The board member 
agreed.   

 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
None 

 
AGENDA ITEM 9:  ADJOURNMENT 

A motion was made by Mrs. Ann Smith to adjourn the meeting.  
 

 
 
       
 
 



5 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
(Following Academic Affairs Committee) 

Southern University System Board Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 

MINUTES 
 

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Facilities and Property Committee. Chair Atty Edwin 
Shorty called the committee meeting to order. 
 
Roll Call by President Shields 
 
Present:   Atty. Edwin Shorty – Chairman, Atty Domoine Rutledge – Vice Chair, Mr. Paul Mathews, Mrs. Ann 
Smith, Dr. Leon Tarver II, Dr. Rani Whitfield, and Mr. Myron K. Lawson, - Ex Officio 
 
Absent: NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Dr. Leon Tarver, II the agenda was recommended for adoption with 
amendment – Informational Item 5A was moved to SULS Committee. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5: INFORMATIONAL ITEM: 
 

A. Update from Public Services Commissioner, Mr. Davante Lewis 
 

B. Global Gateway Village Southern University Development Concept (SUS) 
 

C. Facilities Update (SUS) 
 

 AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS 
 
            None 
 
 AGENDA ITEM 8: ADJOURNMENT 
 
           A motion was made by Dr. Rani Whitfield to adjourn the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



6 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following Facilities and Property Committee) 

Southern University System Board Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 

MINUTES 
 
Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Finance Committee. Chair Dr. Arlanda Williams called 
the committee meeting to order. 
 
Roll Call by President Shields 
 
Present: Mrs. Arlanda Williams- Chairman, Mrs. Ann Smith -Vice-Chair, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mrs. Christy Reeves, 
Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Dr. Leon Tarver II and Atty. Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio 
 
Absent: NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and seconded by Ms. Ann Smith the agenda was recommended for adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Whitley Parker – Student Bar Association – Agenda 5B 
Increasing the non-resident fee will greatly impact the students: more debt – the ability to remain at the law center and 
the ability to afford law school. 
 
Angela Kilgore – SULC – Agenda 5B 
Due to continuing inflation & such, there are financial restraints causing a burden upon students.  
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ACTION ITEM(s): 
     
Chancellor Pierre gave a summary of Action Items A & B.  There were comments from board members. 
 
The motion was made and approved. 
 

A. Request Approval to Establish an Academic Cloud-Based Systems Fee (SULC) 
 

B. Request Approval to Increase Non-Resident Fees for the 2024-2025 Academic Year (SULC) 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Atty Domoine Rutledge to adjourn the meeting. 
 



7 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

 
 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following Finance Committee) 

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA.  
 

MINUTES 
 
 

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Governance Committee.  Chairman Rev Dr. Samuel 
Tolbert called the committee meeting to order. 
 
Roll Call by President Shields 
 
Present: Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert - Chairman, Dr. Rani Whitfield – Vice-Chair, Dr. Leon Tarver, Ms. Christy Reeves, Mr. 
Jyron Young, Atty. Edwin Shorty and Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio 
 
Absent: None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and seconded by Mr. Jyron Young the agenda was recommended for 
adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(s) 
 

A. Request Approval of the Updated Naming Policy (SUS) 
Atty Corinne Blache gave a summary.  Chairman Lawson moved for further discussion.   

 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS: 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made by Chairman Myron K. Lawson to adjourn the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



8 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

 
LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

(Following Governance Committee) 
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA.  

 

AGENDA 
 
Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Legal Affairs Committee.  Vice Chair Atty Domoine 
Rutledge called the committee meeting to order. 
 
Roll Call by President Shields 
 
Present: Atty. Domoine Rutledge – Vice Chair, Mrs. Maple Gaines, Mrs. Christy Reeves, Atty Edwin Shorty, Mr. 
Jyron Young, and Atty. Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio 
 
Absent: Atty Tony Clayton - Chairman 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Mrs. Christy Reeves and seconded by Atty Edwin Shorty the agenda was recommended for 
adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(s) 
 
There was a motion by Atty Edwin Shorty and seconded by Ms. Christy Reeves to approve action item 5A. 
 
Motion approved. 
 

1. Action Item(s) 
 
                      A. Request Approval of Agreements Equal to or Greater than $300,000.00. 
 
 

1. LAMAR Company Contract 
(LDH Essence/COVID-19 Campaign) 

This campaign serves as a crucial 
component of the Ag Center’s initiative 
to enhance public health through 
increased awareness of COVID-19 
vaccinations and immunizations. 
LAMAR is tasked with outdoor 
advertising to include digital advertising 
featuring images, photographs, 
graphics, text, data, or other such 
media. 

$398,814.00 
  

SUAREC 

 
 



9 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS: 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made by Ms. Maple Gaines to adjourn the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
(Following Legal Affairs Committee) 
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA.  

 

AGENDA 
 

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Student Affairs Committee. Chair Dr. Rani Whitfield 
called the committee meeting to order. 
 
Roll Call by President Shields 
 
Present: Dr. Rani Whitfield – Chair, Mr. Raymond Fondel – Vice Chair, Mrs. Ann Smith, Mr. Jyron Young, and Ms. Maple 
Gaines, and Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio 
 
Absent: Ms. Zazell Dudley,  

 
AGENDA ITEM 3:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Chairman Myron K. Lawson and seconded by Mr. Raymond Fondel the agenda was recommended for 
adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None  
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s) 
 

A. Enrollment Updates  

There will be a deeper dive in Enrollment at the Board Retreat. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 

None  
 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
 

A motion was made by Mr. Myron K. Lawson to adjourn the meeting.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
(Following Student Affairs Committee) 
Southern University System Board Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

 

MINUTES 
 

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Personnel Affairs Committee. Chair Mr. Sam Gilliam 
called the committee meeting to order. 
 
Roll Call by President Shields 
 
Present: Mr. Sam Gilliam – Chairman, Mrs. Christy Reeves–Vice-Chair, Atty Tony Clayton, Dr. Leon Tarver, II, Dr. Arlanda 
Williams and Mr. Myron Lawson - Ex Officio 
 
Absent: Ms. Zazell Dudley 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Sam Gilliam mentioned the amendment to the agenda for Action Item 5D (5) and 5E (1) Upon the motion by Dr. Arlanda 
Williams and seconded by Dr. Leon Tarver II the agenda was recommended for adoption with amendment. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None  
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ACTION ITEM(S) 
 
Motion was made by Dr. Leon Tarver, II and second by Dr. Arlanda Williams that Action Item 5(A-G) be approved in global.   
 
Motion Approved  
 

A. A. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than  

                          $60,000.00 (SUNO) 
 

 

D. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than  
                        $60,000.00 (SUBR) 

 

Name Position/Department Description Waived/Search Salary 
Previous     | Suggested 

Funding 
Source 

1. Janel Green Comptroller 
Office of the Comptroller 

New Appointment 
Existing Position 

Search $100,000.00 $ 105,000.00 State 

Name Position/Department Description Waived/Search Salary 
Previous    | Suggested 

Funding 
Source 

1.  Latrinka Cook Asst to the Associate 
Dean/MBA Director 
Malveaux Master of 

Business Admin 

New Appointment 
Existing Position 

Search N/A $60,000.00 State 



12 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

 
E. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than  

                        $60,000.00 (SUAREC) 
 

 
    F. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than  

                     $60,000.00 (SUSLA) 
 

 
    G. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than  

                  $60,000.00 (SULC) 
 

Name Position/Department Description Waived/Search Salary 
Previous  | Suggested 

Funding 
Source 

1. Angela Gaines Facilities Director/ 
ADA Coordinator 

Institutional Support 

Rehire 
Additional Duties 
Existing Position 

N/A $113,400.00 $113,400.00 State 

 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s) 

 

A. Update on employee Evaluations from each Campus (SUS) 

 
 

2. Kamilla Fair Assistant Registrar 
Academic Affairs 

New Appointment 
Existing Position 

Search $69,628.00 $68,000.00 State 

3. Opeyemi P.  
     Ojauni 
 

Post-Doctoral  
Research Manager 

Graduate School 

New Appointment 
New Position 

Search N/A $75,000.00 State/Federal 

4. Sherman Pittman Program Director 
Dept of Accounting, 

Finance & Econ 

New Appointment 
Temp Position 

N/A N/A $72,929.00 Grant 

5. Ashley Sensley Director of Development 
College of Humanities & 
Interdisciplinary Studies 

New Appointment 
New Position 

Search N/A $ 85,000.00 
$90,000.00 

State 

6. Barbara Woods SU Online  
Technology Director 

Academic Affairs 

New Appointment 
New Position 

Search N/A $85,000.00 State 

Name Position/Department Description Waived/Search Salary 
Previous    |  Suggested 

Funding 
Source 

1. Marlin Ford 
 

Asst Research Professor/ 
Urban Ag Specialist/Farm 

Superintendant 
Research Extension 

Salary 
Adjustment 

N/A $ 93,600.00 $ 105,000.00 Federal 

2. Tamika Porter Comptroller 
Finance  

New Appointment 
Existing Position 

Waived $100,628.00 $91,00.00 State 

Name Position/Department Description Waived/Search Salary 
Previous     | Suggested 

Funding 
Source 

1. Kenneth Lee Chief of Police 
University Police 

New Appointment 
Existing Position 

Search $66,040.00 $85,000.00 State 



13 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 

None  
 

AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
 

A motion was made by Chairman Myron Lawson to adjourn the meeting.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



14 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
(Following Personnel Committee) 

Southern University System Board Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board Chair Myron Lawson 
 
PRESENT 
Atty Tony Clayton, Ms. Zazell Dudley, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Ms. Maple Gaines, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr. Myron 
Lawson, Ms. Christy Reeves, Mr. Paul Matthews, Mrs. Christy Reeves, Atty Domoine Rutledge, Atty Edwin Shorty, 
Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr. Leon Tarver, II, Dr. Samuel Tolbert, Rev. Dr. Rani Whitfield, Dr. Arlanda Williams and Mr. 
Jyron Young 
 
 
ABSENT 
Atty Tony Clayton, 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Ms. Christy Reeves, and second by Ms. Ann Smith, the agenda was recommended for adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Comments provided by the following individuals in support of Action Item 6J 
 

• Thomas Miller – SUBR Faculty Senate 
• Albert Samuels - SUBR 
• Anthony Igiede – SUBR Faculty Senate 
• Oswald D’Auvergne – SUBR Faculty Senate 
• Jaclyn Hotard – Parish President – St. John Parish 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5: RESOLUTIONS 
 
Dr. Allen Vital read resolutions for the following: 
Resolutions 

• Gladys Washington Cunningham 
• Sally Mae Young Jackson 
• Gwendolyn Fae Perkins 
• Robert Russelles Perry, Jr.  
• Troy O’Brien Green Sr.  
• James Jessie Monroe 
• Oscar Lavonia Williams, Jr. 
• George Rogers Jr.  



15 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

 
There was a motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield to approve the read resolutions and Mr. Raymond Fondel second the 
motion.   
 
Motion approved.   
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6: ACTION ITEM(s): 
 
There was a motion by Atty Tony Clayton and Second by Atty Domoine Rutledge to approve action item 6(A – I) in 
global. 
 
Motion passed.  
 

A. Approval of Minutes of the February 16, 2024, SUS Board of Supervisors Meeting (SUS) 
 

B. Approval of Committee Reports and Recommendations (SUS)  
 

C. Request Approval to Grant an Honorary Degree to Arlana Miller at the May 2024 Commencement 
Ceremony (SUBR)  

 
D. Request Approval to Grant an Honorary Doctorate of Humane Letters in Social Sciences at the May 

2024 Commencement Ceremony (SUNO)  
 

E. Request Approval to Rename the SUMA Cultural and Heritage Center the Dr. Leon R. Tarver, II 
Cultural and Heritage Center. 

 
F. Request Approval of the National Council for State Authorization Reciprocity Agreement Application 

(SUBR) 
 

G. Request Approval to Modify the Organizational Structure of the Southern  
           University at New Orleans (SUNO)  
 
     H.   Request Approval for the Lease Agreement for SUSLA Aerospace Technology  
           Center (SUSLA) 

 
                 I.   Request Approval to Rename and Restructure the Office of Equity and Inclusion    

         and Title IX (SULC) 
 
    J.  Request Approval for the Recommendation of Chancellor (SUBR)  

There was a motion by Atty Tony Clayton and Second by Ms. Ann Smith to approve action item 6J. 
 

Motion passed.  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7: INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s): 

 
A. Legislative Update - See written Update that was provided. 

 
B. President’s Report  

 



16 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024 

 
C. Chancellor’s Reports – See written updates that was provided in packet. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8: OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 9: ADJOURNMENT 
 
 A motion was made by Dr. Whitfield to adjourn the meeting.  
 
 

















STATE OF LOUISIANA 
 

EXTENSION TO CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL LEGAL SERVICES 
 
 BE IT KNOWN THAT this agreement is entered into by and between BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND AGRICULTURAL AND 

MECHANICAL COLLEGE, (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “Board”) and DECUIR, 

CLARK AND ADAMS, L.L.P. (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “Counsel”), collectively 

herein referred to as “Parties”. 

1. 

The Parties entered into a contract for professional services (“Contract”) in April 2021 with 

an effective period of July 1, 2021 and ending on June 30, 2023. 

2. 

 Contract provided for two (2) one-year extensions.   

3. 

The Parties wish to extend Contract through June 30, 2025.   

4. 

All other provisions under the Contract remain the same.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of this ____day 

of ____________________, 2024. 

 
_______________________________ 
Myron K. Lawson, Chairman 
Southern University and A&M College 
System Board of Supervisors 
 

 
_______________________________ 
Dennis J. Shields, President-Chancellor 
Southern University and A&M College System 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Brandon J. DeCuir, Partner 
DeCuir, Clark & Adams, LLP  
 
 



 

STATE OF LOUISIANA  
 
PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE 

 
SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF 

CHANCELLOR OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AGRICULTURAL, 
RESEARCH AND EXTENSION CENTER AND DEAN OF THE 
COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE AT SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 

AND A&M COLLEGE 
ORLANDO F. McMEANS 

 
This amendment is made and entered into on the19th day of April 2024 between the Board 

of Supervisors of Southern University and A&M College (“Board”) and Dr. Orlando F. McMeans 
(“Chancellor”). This Amendment, along with the previous amendment and the original 
employment contract constitutes the Employment Contract of the Chancellor of Southern 
University Agricultural, Research and Extension Center and Dean of the College of Agriculture at 
Southern University and A&M College in Baton Rouge, Louisiana (“University”) (collectively 
referred herein as “Parties”).  This Second Amendment shall be effective as of December 1, 2023, 
through the end of the contract term.  The Parties wish to amend their agreement in the following 
respects.  All other provisions not specifically addressed herein remain in effect.   

I.         TERM OF EMPLOYMENT 

a. This Amendment shall extend the term of the contract through December 31, 2029.   
 
III. COMPENSATION 

a. The Chancellor shall be paid an annual base salary of three hundred thirty-seven thousand 
($337,000.00) effective December 1, 2023, through the term of the contract.  

b. Subject to satisfactory annual evaluations and available resources, the Chancellor shall 
receive a minimum annual increase of 4%.  At the discretion of the President and Board of 
Supervisors, the adjustment can be greater than 4%.    

THE PARTIES hereto, acknowledging that this Agreement is subject to approval of the  
Board of Supervisors, have executed this Agreement on the day, month and year first above 
written. 

 
CHANCELLOR, SOUTHERN 
UNIVERSITY AGRICULTURAL 
RESEARCH AND EXTENSION CENTER 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Orlando F. McMeans, Ph.D. 
 
PRESIDENT, SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 
AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Dennis J. Shields 

 
CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN 
UNIVERSITY AND AGRICULTURAL 
AND MECHANICAL COLLEGE 

 
 

___________________________________ 
Myron K. Lawson 


	April 2024 BOS Meeting
	Spring 2024 Commencement Resolutions
	College of Humanities and Interdisciplinary Studies Curriculum Changes
	SUSLA Degree Program Proposals
	SUSLA Distance Learning Program Request
	Athletic Director Roman Banks Contract
	Baton Rouge Water Works Servitude Agreement
	Capital Outlay Projects
	Housing Fee Increase (Refer to Handout)
	Interim Financial Report
	SUAREC Mobile Processing Trailer & Supply, LLC
	CLM Construction Contract (SU Lab Restrooms Renovations)
	Kingdom Builders Construction Contract (SU Lab Exterior Windows)
	LA Public Service Commission (J. B. Cade Library)
	LA Public Service Commission (F.G. Clark Activity Center)
	LA Office of Health/OBH
	G. E. C., INC Profession Service Contract
	          SUNO
	         SUBR
	       SUAREC
	      SUS
	Leave of Absence /Alford
	Leave of Absence / Harrison
	Retirement Incentive Plans
	SUNO Summer Hours Pilot
	March 2024 Meeting Minutes
	SULC Compliance Rename and Restructure
	Advanced Biomedics, LLC
	DCA Contract
	Chancellor-Dean McMeans (SUAREC)



